

Date: 22 December 2020

Time: 16:15 hrs

Subject: BULLETIN NO: 1

Document No: 1.1

From: The Clerk of the Course

To: All competitors / crew members

Number of pages: 12 Attachments: 1

APPROVED BY THE FIA – 22 Dec 2020

1. Amendments to the Supplementary Regulations of the Rally

1. INTRODUCTION

1.3 Distance totale des Epreuves Spéciales et distance totale du rallye

Distance totale des ES : ~~303,52~~ 279,88 km

Distance totale du rallye : ~~1475,59~~ 1415,85 km

1.3 Overall Special Stages distance and rally total distance

Overall SS distance: ~~303,52~~ 279.88 km

Rally total distance: ~~1,475.59~~ 1,415.85 km

2. ORGANISATION

2.5 Commissaires Sportifs / Stewards ~~of the Meeting~~

Président / Chairperson : Mr Iain CAMPBELL (GBR)

Commissaire Sportif FIA / FIA Steward : Mr Edoardo DELLEANI (ITA)

Commissaire Sportif ASN / ASN Steward : Mr Eric BARRABINO (MCO)

Secrétaire : Ms Yvonne GILLI

2.6 Délégués FIA / FIA Delegates

Délégué Sportif / Sporting Delegate: ~~Mr Andrew WHEATLEY~~ Timo RAUTIAINEN

Délégué Sécurité / Safety Delegate: Ms Michèle MOUTON

Assistant du Délégué Sécurité / Assistant to the Safety Delegate: Mr Nicolas KLINGER

Délégué Médical / Medical Delegate: Dr Cem BONEVAL

Délégué Média / Media Delegate: Ms Vera DUSSAUSAYE

Délégué Technique Senior / Senior Technical Delegate: Mr Jérôme TOQUET

Délégué Technique / Technical Delegate: Mr Karmo UUSMAA

Assistant du Délégué Technique / Assistant to the Technical Delegate: Mr Emanuele SAGLIA

Assistant du Délégué Technique / Assistant to the Technical Delegate: Mr Lionel BERARD

Assistant du Délégué Technique / Assistant to the Technical Delegate: Mr Michele PARMIGIANI

Assistant du Délégué Technique / Assistant to the Technical Delegate: Mr Alberto CASTO

Assistant du Délégué Technique / Assistant to the Technical Delegate: Mr Mattia RUSCONI

2.7 Officiels / Officials

Directeurs de Course Adjoints / Deputy Clerks of the Course : Mrs Sophie BENSA, MM. Christian TORNATORE, Christophe ALLGEYER, Jacques ROSSI, Cyril VADA, Jean-Marie CONTERNO, Jean-Michel MATAS, Romain PUGLIESE, ~~et TBA~~ Nicolas MINAZZOLI, & Gilbert GIRAUD (FFSA).

Responsable des Commissaires / Chief Marshal : M. Jean-Michel MATAS

Assistants : MM. Tony RIVELLO & Jérémie JOFFRE

Directeurs d'ES / SS Directors : MM. ~~Christophe FABRI~~ Jean Christophe MATTON, François ARDISSON & Guillaume MOREL

Chefs de Sécurité ES / SS Safety Chiefs : MM. ~~Jean-Christophe MATTON~~ Frédéric DAL-PONT, Sylvain FRIER et Christian BERNI

Chefs de Sécurité Adjoint ES / *SS Deputy Safety Chiefs* : MM. ~~Frédéric DAL PONT~~ Stéphane SERRA, Jean-Marc GUSTINELLI & Michael ADJEDJ

Chargés des Relations avec les Autorités Françaises / *French Authorities' Relations Officers* : ~~TBA~~ MM. Hervé ORSINI, Jean-Marie GRANA & Albert PATISSON

Responsable des Classements / *Head of Result Service* : M. Jean-Louis ORSINI

Tous les Officiels du Rallye, à l'exception des Membres du Collège des Commissaires Sportifs, sont Juges de Fait.

Except the Stewards of the Meeting, all the Officials of the Rally are Judges of Fact.

2.10 SUPPRIMER cet article / *DELETE this article*

2.12 RÈGLEMENTS SPORTIFS WRC - MODIFICATIONS DES PROCÉDURES GÉNÉRALES / COMMUNICATION

Pendant l'événement, la communication individuelle et générale entre tous les officiels du rallye (QG du rallye, COC, secrétariat du rallye, CRO, commissaires sportifs, commissaires, etc.) et les concurrents/membres de l'équipage se fera principalement et dans la mesure du possible par voie électronique (téléphone portable, courriel, Sportity, WhatsApp). À cette fin, chaque concurrent doit désigner UN représentant officiel autorisé à recevoir toute notification officielle, ainsi que le contact correspondant (courrier électronique). Ce contact devra être notifié avant le **lundi 11 janvier 2021**.

Ce contact sera utilisé à la fois pour les communications générales et individuelles. Toute confirmation de réception, si nécessaire, devra être retournée par ce contact à l'adresse électronique suivante : rallye@acm.mc. Comme prévu dans l'article FIA ISC. 11.9.4, le tableau d'affichage officiel sera le tableau d'affichage numérique, publié sur le site web de l'événement. Il n'y aura pas de tableau d'affichage officiel physique. Tous les concurrents seront informés par courrier électronique de la publication de tout document sur le panneau d'affichage numérique. De plus, les documents officiels du rallye seront disponibles dans l'application Sportity (téléchargeable pour les appareils iOS sur Appstore et pour les appareils Android sur Google Play): Le mot de passe est **RAMC2021**.

2.12 WRC SPORTING REGULATIONS - CHANGES IN PROCEDURES GENERAL / COMMUNICATION

*During the event, individual and general communication between all rally officials (rally HQ, COC, rally secretariat, CRO, Stewards, Marshals etc.) and the competitors/crew members will primarily and as much as possible be conducted electronically (Cellphone, Email, Sportity, WhatsApp). For this purpose, each competitor is required to nominate ONE official representative authorised to receive any official notifications, along with the respective contact (e-mail). This contact must be notified before **Monday 11th January 2021**.*

This contact will be used both for general and individual communications. Any confirmation of receipt, if required, must mandatorily be returned by this contact to the following e-mail address: rallye@acm.mc

*As provided for in FIA ISC Art. 11.9.4, the Official Notice Board will be the digital notice board, published on the Event website. There will be no physical official notice board. All competitors will be informed by e-mail about the publication of any documents on the digital notice board. Additionally, official rally documents will also be available in the Sportity app (downloadable for iOS devices on Appstore and for Android devices on Google Play): Password is **RAMC2021**.*

3. PROGRAMME / SCHEDULE

3.2 Programme durant la semaine du Rallye / Schedule during the Rally week

Jeudi 14 janvier 2021 / Thursday, 14 th January 2021		
14h00 - 20h00	Ouverture du parc d'assistance aux constructeurs <i>Service park open to manufacturers</i>	GAP Centre Omnisport COSEC
Samedi 16 janvier 2021 / Saturday, 16 th January 2021		
08h00 - 20h00	Ouverture du parc d'assistance à tous les concurrents <i>Service park open to all Competitors</i>	GAP Centre Omnisport COSEC
Dimanche 17 Janvier 2021 / Sunday, 17 th January 2021		
14h00	Départ / <i>Start</i>	
14h00 – 21h00 08h00 – 20h00	Vérifications administratives, distribution du matériel aux concurrents (autocollants, plaques) sur convocation <i>Administrative checks, materials and documents distributed to competitors (stickers, plates) by appointment</i>	MONACO Centre Média <i>Media Centre</i> GAP Le Quattro
	Distribution du matériel de reconnaissances et du système de suivi des voitures de reconnaissances <i>Reconnaissance materials and recce cars tracking system distribution</i>	GAP Parc d'Assistance <i>Service park</i> Camion SAS / <i>SAS Truck</i>
Lundi 18 janvier 2021 / Monday, 18 th January 2021		
08h00 – 20h00 10h00 - 18h00	Reconnaissance	Art. 12- 9
14h00 - 20h00	Ouverture des Centres d'Accréditation et Média <i>Accreditation and Media Centre opening hours</i>	GAP Le Quattro
17h00 – 21h00	Distribution du système de suivi de sécurité des voitures de rallye <i>Rally cars safety tracking system distribution</i>	GAP Parc d'Assistance <i>Service Park</i>
Mardi 19 janvier 2021 / Tuesday, 19 th January 2021		
08h00 – 12h00	Distribution du système de suivi de sécurité des voitures de rallye <i>Rally cars safety tracking system distribution</i>	GAP Parc d'Assistance <i>Service park</i>
08h00 - 20h00 19h00	Reconnaissance	Art. 12- 9
08h00 - 20h00	Ouverture des Centres d'Accréditation et Média <i>Accreditation and Media Centre opening hours</i>	GAP Le Quattro
09h00 – 24h00	Vérifications techniques pour les P1 non engagés par un constructeur, P2, P3, RGT et non prioritaires (sur convocation) <i>Scrutineering for P1 not entered by a manufacturer, P2, P3, RGT and non priority drivers (by appointment)</i>	GAP Lycée Technique CFA

17h00 - 21h00	Distribution du système de suivi de sécurité des voitures de rallye <i>Rally cars safety tracking system distribution</i>	GAP Parc d'Assistance Service park Camion SAS / SAS Truck
Mercredi 20 janvier 2021 / Wednesday, 20 th January 2021		
08h00 - 12h00	Distribution du système de suivi de sécurité des voitures de rallye <i>Rally cars safety tracking system distribution</i>	GAP Parc d'Assistance Service park Camion SAS / SAS Truck
08h00 - 12h00	Vérifications techniques pour les constructeurs (un horaire détaillé sera communiqué) Scrutineering for Manufacturers (a detailed timetable will be published)	GAP Parc d'Assistance Service Park
08h00 - 19h00	Reconnaissance	Art. 12 - 9
08h00 - 20h00	Ouverture des Centres d'Accréditation et Média <i>Accreditation and Media Centre opening hours</i>	GAP Centre Média / Media Centre <i>Le Quattro</i>
09h00 - 24h00	Vérifications techniques pour les P1 non-engagés par un constructeur, P2, P3, RGT et non-prioritaires (sur convocation) <i>Scrutineering for P1 not-entered by a manufacturer, P2, P3, RGT and non-priority drivers (by appointment)</i>	GAP Lycée Technique CFA
16h00	Briefing des Directeurs d'Ecuries (Constructeurs uniquement) <i>Team Managers briefing (Manufacturers only)</i>	Video Conference
18h00	Publication de la liste de départ des pilotes P1 et autres pilotes désignés pour la Séance de Mise au Point <i>Publication of start list for Shakedown for P1 and other drivers, if applicable</i>	GAP & MONACO Permanences du Rallye <i>Rally HQ</i>
19h00	Réunion des équipages des voitures de sécurité ACM <i>ACM Safety Car drivers briefing</i>	GAP Hôtel Les Olivades
20h30	Pour tous les pilotes et copilotes : briefing obligatoire d'information et d'utilisation du système de suivi de sécurité fourni par « Status Awareness Systems » <i>For all drivers and co-drivers: compulsory information and instructions briefing about the safety tracking system provided by « Status Awareness Systems »</i>	Video Conference
Jeudi 21 janvier 2021 / Thursday, 21 st January 2021		
08h00 - 12h00	Vérifications techniques pour les constructeurs (un horaire détaillé sera communiqué) <i>Scrutineering for Manufacturers (a detailed timetable will be published)</i>	GAP Parc d'Assistance Service Park

09h01 – 11h00	Séance de Mise au Point : 1 ^{er} tour pour les pilotes P1 et autres pilotes désignés, puis Séance de Mise au Point pour les pilotes P1, P2 et P3 <i>Shakedown: 1st run for P1 and other drivers, if applicable, followed by Shakedown for P1, P2 and P3 drivers</i>	GAP Route de la Garde
11h00 – 13h00	Séance de Mise au Point pour tous les pilotes <i>Shakedown for all drivers</i>	GAP Route de la Garde
08h00 >*	Ouverture du Centre Média <i>Media Centre opening hours</i>	GAP <i>Le Quattro</i>
08h00 - 21h00	Ouverture du Centre d'Accréditation <i>Accreditation Centre opening hours</i>	GAP <i>Le Quattro</i>
Approximativement <i>Approximately</i> 13h30	Rencontre avec les équipages (Top 3) <i>Meet the Crews (Top 3)</i>	GAP Parc d'Assistance <i>Service Park</i>
14h00-11h00	Visioconférence de presse FIA <i>FIA Press Videoconference</i>	GAP Parc d'Assistance <i>Service Park</i> Permanence du Rallye <i>Rally HQ</i>
12h00 - 13h00	Test des systèmes de caméra embarquée pour les pilotes P1 & P2 <i>On board camera systems test for P1 & P2</i>	GAP Parc d'Assistance <i>Service Park</i>
13h00	Publication de la liste de départ de la Section 1 <i>Publication of start list for Section 1</i>	GAP & MONACO Permanences du Rallye <i>Rally HQ</i>
14h30	Publication de la liste de départ de la Section 1 <i>Publication of start list for Section 1</i>	GAP & MONACO Permanences du Rallye <i>Rally HQ</i>
14h30	Publication de la liste de départ de la Section 1 <i>Publication of start list for Section 1</i>	GAP & MONACO Permanences du Rallye <i>Rally HQ</i>
14h30	Réunion du Corps Médical <i>Medical Briefing</i>	GAP Permanence du Rallye <i>Rally HQ</i>
15h00 - 15h30	Photo officielle des pilotes WRC <i>WRC drivers official photograph</i>	GAP Centre Omnisport COSEC
15h30 – 16h00 TBC	Photo officielle des voitures WRC <i>WRC cars official photograph</i>	TBC
17h00 14h00	Réunion des pilotes d'hélicoptères <i>Helicopters pilots briefing</i>	TBC GAP – Le Quattro
18h10-15h40	Départ du Jour 1 / <i>Start Day 1 « GAP - GAP »</i>	
19h08-16h38	ES/SS 1 « SAINT-DISDIER – CORPS »	
20h06 17h36	ES/SS 2 « SAINT-MAURICE – SAINT-BONNET »	
21h59 19h29	Parc Fermé ENTREE (Pointage en avance autorisé) <i>Parc Fermé IN (Early check-in allowed)</i>	GAP – Centre Omnisport COSEC

Approximativement <i>Approximately</i> 21h30 19h00	Rencontre avec les équipages (Top 3 - Video) <i>Meet the Crews (Top 3 - Video)</i>	GAP Parc d'Assistance Service Park Permanence du Rallye Rally HQ
00h00 21h30	Publication de la liste de départ de la Section 2 <i>Publication of start list for Section 2</i>	GAP & MONACO Permanences du Rallye Rally HQ
Vendredi 22 janvier 2021 / Friday, 22nd January 2021		
07h00 > *	Ouverture du Centre Média <i>Media Centre opening hours</i>	GAP Centre Média Media Centre
07h30 07h11	Départ du Jour 2 / <i>Start Day 2</i> « GAP - GAP »	
08h36 08h17	ES/SS 3 « ASPREMONT - LA BATIE-DES-FONTS » 1	
09h54 09h38	ES/SS 4 « CHALANCON - GUMIANE » 1	
11h27 11h11	ES/SS 5 « MONTAUBAN-SUR-L'OUVEZE - VILLEBOIS-LES-PINS » 1	
14h58 14h47	ES/SS 6 « ASPREMONT - LA BATIE-DES-FONTS » 2	
16h16 16h08	ES/SS 7 « CHALANCON - GUMIANE » 2	
17h59 17h41	ES/SS 8 « MONTAUBAN-SUR-L'OUVEZE - VILLEBOIS-LES-PINS » 2	
Approximativement <i>Approximately</i> 20h00	Rencontre avec les équipages (Top 3 - Video) <i>Meet the Crews (Top 3 - Video)</i>	GAP Parc d'Assistance Service Park Permanence du Rallye Rally HQ
20h27 20h14	Parc Fermé ENTREE (Pointage en avance autorisé) <i>Parc Fermé IN (Early check-in allowed)</i>	GAP – Centre Omnisport COSEC
23h00 22h30	Publication de la liste de départ de la Section 4 <i>Publication of start list for Section 4</i>	GAP & MONACO Permanences du Rallye Rally HQ
Samedi 23 janvier 2021 / Saturday, 23rd January 2021		
08h30 > *	Ouverture du Centre Média <i>Media Centre opening hours</i>	GAP Centre Média Media Centre
08h57 08h06	Départ du Jour 3 / <i>Start Day 3</i> « GAP – MONACO »	
14h00 > *	Ouverture du Centre Média <i>Media Centre opening hours</i>	MONACO Centre Média Media Centre
09h17	ES/SS 9 « LA BREOLE – SELONNET » 1	
10h38 11h08	ES/SS 9 10 « SAINT-CLEMENT – FREISSINIERES »	
12h15	ES/SS 10 « SAINT-APOLLINAIRE – EMBRUN »	

14h08	ES/SS 11 « SAINT CLEMENT – FREISSINIERES » 2	
18h09 15h08	ES/SS 12 11 « LA BREOLE – SELONNET » 2	
Approximativement Approximately 16h15 13h45	Rencontre avec les équipages (Top 3 - <i>Video</i>) <i>Meet the Crews (Top 3 - Video)</i>	MONACO TBC GAP Permanence du Rallye Rally HQ
22h09 19h08	Parc Fermé ENTREE (Pointage en avance autorisé) <i>Parc Fermé IN (Early check-in allowed)</i>	MONACO - Quai Albert 1 ^{er}
00h00 21h30	Publication de la liste de départ de la Section 6 <i>Publication of start list for Section 6</i>	MONACO Permanence du Rallye Rally HQ
Dimanche 24 janvier 2021 – Sunday 24 th January 2021		
06h30 > *	Ouverture du Centre Média <i>Media Centre opening hours</i>	MONACO Centre Média /Media Centre
06h42	Départ du Jour 4 / <i>Start Day 4</i> « MONACO - MONACO »	
08h30	ES/SS 13 12 « PUGET-THENIERS - LA PENNE » 1	
10h08	ES/SS 14 13 « BRIANCONNET - ENTREVAUX » 1	
10h45	ES/SS 15 14 « PUGET-THENIERS - LA PENNE » 2	
12h18	ES/SS 16 15 « BRIANCONNET - ENTREVAUX » 2 (Power Stage)	
14h18	Parc Fermé ENTREE (Pointage en avance autorisé) <i>Parc Fermé IN (Early check-in allowed)</i>	MONACO Quai Albert 1 ^{er}
16h00	Cérémonie de remise des prix <i>Prize Giving Ceremony</i>	MONACO Quai Albert 1 ^{er}
17h00	Vérifications techniques finales <i>Final scrutineering</i>	MONACO Service du Contrôle Technique
17h00	Visioconférence de presse FIA <i>FIA Press Videoconference</i>	MONACO Quai Albert 1 ^{er}
18h00	Publication du classement final provisoire <i>Publication of provisional final classification</i>	MONACO Permanence du Rallye Rally HQ
20h30	Dîner de gala <i>Gala Dinner</i>	TBC

(*) = jusqu'au départ du dernier journaliste / *Until the last journalist leaves*

4. ENGAGEMENTS / ENTRIES

4.5 Matériel supplémentaire / Additional material

Cartographie Officielle / Official Maps : 20 €

4.5.2 Packs engagement / Packages

Package pour les pilotes non-prioritaires (NP) / Package for the non-priority drivers (NP)

Plaques Voitures / Vehicle Plates		Laissez-Passer / Passes	
Assistance / Service	1	Pilote / Driver Copilote / Co-Driver	± 2
Auxiliaire / Auxiliary	1	Mécanicien / Mechanic	± 6
Ouvreur / Route Note Car	1	Surface Parc Assistance Service Park area	100 m ² *
Documents			
Règlement Particulier Supplementary Regulations	www.acm.mc	Road Book	2
RG1		Cartographie Officielle Official Maps	2 www.acm.mc
RG2		Programme Officiel Official Programme	2
Résultats / Results			

7. PNEUMATIQUES / TYRES

7.3 Quantités / Quantities

	List 1 (WRC cars) (2021 FIA WRC SR Art. 13.2)	List 2 (other 4WD cars) (2021 FIA WRC SR Art. 13.2)	All other cars (2021 FIA WRC SR Art. 13.3 - 13.4)
Soft	20	20	Free
Super Soft	24	16	Free
Neige (non cloutés) Snow (non -studded)	12	12	Free
Neige (cloutés) Snow (studded)	24	24	Free
Total alloué Total allocated	80	72	Free
Maxi à utiliser sans le shakedown Maxi to use if no Shakedown	34	32	32
Maxi à utiliser avec le shakedown Maxi to use if Shakedown	38	36	36

Le formulaire de commande de pneus Pirelli est disponible sur le site du rallye sous Infos Concurrents / Formulaires.

Pirelli tyre order form can be found on the rally website under Competitors Information / Forms

9. RECONNAISSANCES / RECONNAISSANCE

9.3.1

Toutes les reconnaissances, pour l'ensemble des équipages, ne pourront être effectuées qu'avec des voitures conformes aux dispositions de l'Art. 35.1 du RS CMR FIA 2021.

Deux autocollants "RECCE" numérotés seront à retirer lors des vérifications administratives, ~~au Centre Media Monaco, 4 Quai Antoine 1^{er}~~ au Centre d'Accréditation « Le Quattro » - 56 Avenue Emile Didier - 05000 Gap, dimanche 17 janvier 2021 de 14h00 à 21h00 - de 08h00 à 20h00, et devront être apposés sur la voiture durant toute la période des reconnaissances (un sur le pare-brise en haut à droite et l'autre sur la lunette arrière centré en haut).

9.3.1

For all competitors, reconnaissance must be done with cars conforming with the 2021 FIA WRC SR Art. 35.1. Two "RECCE" numbered stickers must be collected during the administrative checks, at ~~the Media Centre, 4 Quai Antoine 1^{er} Monaco,~~ the Accreditation Centre "Le Quattro" - 56 Avenue Emile Didier - 05000 Gap on Sunday, 17th January 2021 from 14h00 to 21h00 - 08h00 to 20h00, and must be affixed on the car during the whole duration of the reconnaissance (one on the top right of the windscreen and the other on the top middle of the rear window).

9.3.4 SUPPRIMER cet article / DELETE this article

(Il n'y aura pas de séance de mise au point / No shakedown will be driven.)

9.4 Système de suivi pour les reconnaissances

Tous les concurrents devront équiper leurs véhicules de reconnaissances d'un système de suivi à retirer auprès du fournisseur officiel de la FIA STATUS AWARENESS SYSTEM (SAS) lors de l'enregistrement aux reconnaissances ~~au Centre Media 4, Quai Antoine 1^{er} Monaco~~ **Parc d'Assistance de Gap (camion SAS) le dimanche 17 janvier 2021 de 14h00 à 21h00 de 08h00 à 20h00.**

9.4 Tracking system for reconnaissance

All competitors must equip their reconnaissance cars with a tracking system to be collected from the FIA official supplier STATUS AWARENESS SYSTEM (SAS) during the reconnaissance registration in the ~~Media Centre, 4 Quai Antoine 1^{er} Monaco~~ **on Gap Service Park (SAS truck) Sunday, 17th January 2021 from 14h00 to 21h00 - 08h00 to 20h00.**

12. DEROULEMENT DU RALLYE / RUNNING OF THE RALLY

12.2 Procédure de départ

Le départ du « 89^e Rallye Automobile Monte-Carlo » se déroulera le **jeudi 21 janvier 2021 à 18h10 15h40** à Gap - Centre Omnisport COSEC.

12.2 Start procedure

The start of the "89^e Rallye Automobile Monte-Carlo" will take place on **Thursday, 21st January 2021 at 18h10 15h40** in Gap - Centre Omnisport COSEC.

12.3 SUPPRIMER cet article / DELETE this article

12.4 Echange des carnets de contrôle pendant le rallye

Le jeu complet des carnets de contrôle pour l'ensemble du rallye (~~y compris celui du Shakedown pour tous les pilotes concernés selon l'Art. 36.2.2 du RS CMR FIA 2021~~) sera distribué avec le matériel du rallye lors des vérifications administratives. Il est impératif pour tous les équipages d'avoir au moins toutes les séries de carnets de contrôle d'une journée entière à l'intérieur de la voiture (cf. par exemple les procédures de contrôle de regroupement).

12.4 Time card changes during the rally

The complete set of time cards for the whole rally (~~including the Shakedown time cards for all drivers affected under the 2021 FIA WRC SR Art. 36.2.2~~) will be delivered with the rally materials at administrative checks. It is imperative for all crews to carry at least all the time card sets for a whole day inside the car (cf. for example procedures at regrouping controls).

12.6 Pointage en avance

Les équipages sont autorisés à pointer en avance :

CH 2C Flexi-Assistance SORTIE/Parc Fermé ENTREE

CH 8C Flexi-Assistance SORTIE/Parc Fermé ENTREE

CH ~~12A~~ **11A** Parc Fermé ENTREE

CH ~~16A~~ **15A** Zone Technique ENTREE

CH ~~16B~~ **15B** Zone Technique SORTIE/Parc Fermé ENTREE

12.6 Early check-in

Crews are allowed to check-in early at:

TC 2C Flexi-Service OUT/Parc Fermé IN

TC 8C Flexi-Service OUT/Parc Fermé IN

TC ~~12A~~ **11A** Parc Fermé IN

TC ~~16A~~ **15A** Technical Zone IN

TC ~~16B~~ **15B** Technical Zone OUT/Parc Fermé IN

12.9 Sections 6, 7 et 8

Seuls les 50 premiers classés à l'issue de la section 5 pourront prendre le départ des sections 6, 7 et 8, le dimanche 24 janvier 2021, au CH ~~12B~~ **11B**.

12.9 Sections 6, 7 and 8

Only the 50 first competitors classified at the end of the section 5 will be authorized to take the start of sections 6, 7 and 8, on Sunday, 24th January 2021, at TC ~~12B~~ **11B**.

12.10 Power Stage

Conformément à l'Art. 50 du RS CMR FIA 2021, l'ES ~~16~~ **15** "BRIANCONNET - ENTREVAUX" sera la Power Stage.

12.10 Power Stage

In compliance with the 2021 FIA WRC SR Art. 50, SS ~~16~~ **15** "BRIANCONNET - ENTREVAUX" will be the Power Stage.

12.10.1 Ordre de départ et intervalles de la Power Stage

Tous les équipages devront être à la disposition de l'organisateur au regroupement entre les CH ~~15A~~ **14A** et ~~15B~~ **14B**, afin de pouvoir recevoir les informations sur leur heure de départ au CH ~~15B~~ **14B**, si cette information est différente de celle qui leur a été donnée à leur arrivée au CH ~~15A~~ **14A**.

12.10.1 Start order and intervals of the Power Stage

All crews must be at the organiser's disposal in the regroup area between TC ~~15A~~ **14A** and TC ~~15B~~ **14B**, in order to be able to receive information about their start time from TC ~~15B~~ **14B**. This information may be different from the one available at their arrival to TC ~~15A~~ **14A**.

12.13 Zone de Montage Pneumatiques (ZMP)

En complément du travail permis dans la Zone de Montage Pneumatiques (CH~~12B~~ **11B** - CH~~12C~~ **11C**) conformément à l'Art. 60 du RS CMR FIA 2021, les concurrents sont aussi autorisés à déposer tout éclairage auxiliaire dans cette zone.

12.13 Tyre Fitting Zone (TFZ)

In addition to the work permitted in the Tyre Fitting Zone (TC ~~12B~~ **11B** - TC~~12C~~ **11C**) under the 2021 FIA WRC SR Art. 60, competitors are also allowed to leave any auxiliary lights in that zone.

14. VOITURE OUVREUSES / ROUTE NOTE CARS

14.1

La demande d'utilisation d'une voiture ouvreuse devra être adressée au secrétariat du rallye au plus tard le mardi 5 janvier 2021 (~~Annexe VIII~~ utiliser le formulaire publié sur le site du rallye sous Infos Concurrents / Formulaires).

The request to use a route note car must be sent to the secretariat of the rally no later than Tuesday, 5th January 2021 (~~Appendix VIII~~ use form published on the rally website under Competitors Information / Forms).

~~Si un équipage n'a pas de voiture ouvreuse, un membre de l'équipe par concurrent pourra être présent aux points d'échanges de notes du parcours dans le seul but de remettre les notes à leur équipage respectif.~~

En l'absence de l'équipage de la voiture de notes, un membre d'équipe par concurrent peut être présent dans les points d'échange de notes dans le seul but de remettre les notes à l'(aux) équipage(s) respectif(s).

~~If a crew has no route note car, one team member per competitor may be present in the route note exchange points for the purpose of handing over the notes to the respective crew only.~~

If not the route note crew, one team member per competitor may be present in the route note exchange points for the sole purpose of handing over the notes to the respective crew(s).

14.2 Le passage de toutes les voitures ouvrees sera interdit dans les ~~ES-11~~, ~~ES 15~~ **14 et ~~ES 16-15~~.**

14.2 *All route note cars will be forbidden in ~~SS-11~~, ~~SS 15~~ **14 and ~~SS 16 15~~.***

16.2 Droits de réclamation

Montant du droit de réclamation : 1 000 €

Si la réclamation nécessite le montage et réassemblage d'une partie bien définie de la voiture, une caution supplémentaire sera notifiée par les Commissaires Sportifs selon l'Art. 13.4.3 du ~~RS-CMR~~ **Code Sportif International** FIA 2021.

16.2 Protest deposit

Protest deposit amount: 1,000 €

*If the protest requires the dismantling and the reassembly of a clearly defined part of the car, an additional deposit may be specified by the Stewards in accordance with the 2021 FIA ~~WRC-SR~~ **International Sporting Code** Art.13.4.3.*

ANNEXE II : PROGRAMME DES RECONNAISSANCES**APPENDIX II: RECONNAISSANCE SCHEDULE**

Monday 18th January 2021	10h00 - 18h00	SS 12/14 SS 13/15
Tuesday 19th January 2021	08h00 - 19h00	SS 3/6 SS 4/7 SS 5/8
Wednesday 20th January 2021	08h00 - 14h00	SS 9/11 SS 10
	13h00 - 19h00	SS 1 SS 2

2. Amendments to the Itinerary / Road Books**ANNEXE I : ITINERAIRE****APPENDIX I: ITINERARY**(voir / see **Attachment 1**)Alain Pallanca
Clerk of the Course

Bulletin 1, Attachment 1

THURSDAY 21 JANUARY 2021						
TC	LOCATION	SS km	Liaison km	Total km	Target time	First car due
0	Gap		0,00	0,00		15h40
	Refuel (FIA & ACM fuels) - Gap	RZ1	(3,63)			
	Distance to next refuel	(41,36)	(91,33)	(132,69)		
1	Saint-Disdier		46,61	46,61	0h55	16h35
SS 1	Saint-Disdier - Corps (Live TV)	20,58				16h38
2	Saint-Maurice		18,22	38,80	0h55	17h33
SS 2	Saint-Maurice - Saint-Bonnet	20,78				17h36
2A	Gap - Technical Zone IN		23,98	44,76	0h55	18h31
2B	Gap - Technical Zone OUT - Flexi-Service IN		0,15	0,15	0h10	18h41
	Flexi-Service A (Gap)	41,36	88,96	130,32	0h45+3	
2C	Gap - Flexi-Service OUT - Parc Fermé IN		1,30	1,30		19h29
	Early check-in allowed					
	All cars (except restarting crews) must be returned to Parc Fermé no later than					22h00
DAY 1 : TOTALS		41,36	90,26	131,62		
Sunrise : 08h05 (Gap) - 07h57 (Monaco)		Sunset : 17h28 (Gap) - 17h25 (Monaco)				

VERSION 2 - 18.12.2020

Bulletin 1, Attachment 1

FRIDAY 22 JANUARY 2021						
TC	LOCATION	SS km	Liaison km	Total km	Target time	First car due
2D	Gap - Parc Fermé OUT - Service IN		0,00	0,00		07h11
Service B (Gap)			0,00	0,00	0h15+3	
2E	Gap - Service OUT		1,30	1,30		07h29
Refuel (FIA & ACM fuels) - Gap		R.Z.2	(3,40)			
Distance to next refuel		(41,23)	(118,92)	(160,15)		
3	Aspremont		38,76	38,76	0h45	08h14
SS 3	Aspremont - La Bâtie-des-Fonts 1	19,61				08h17
4	Chalancon		35,40	55,01	1h15	09h32
SS 4	Chalancon - Gumiane 1 (Live TV)	21,62				09h38
Refuel (FIA & ACM fuels) - Saint-Auban-sur-l'Ouvèze		R.Z.3	(48,16)			
Distance to next refuel		(22,24)	(77,70)	(99,94)		
5	Montauban-sur-l'Ouvèze		59,07	80,69	1h30	11h08
SS 5	Montauban-sur-l'Ouvèze - Villebois-les-Pins 1	22,24				11h11
5A	Gap - Technical Zone and Regroup IN		61,94	84,18	1h35	12h46
5B	Gap - Technical Zone and Regroup OUT - Service IN		0,15	0,15	0h30	13h16
Service C (Gap)			63,47	196,62	260,09	0h40+3
5C	Gap - Service OUT		1,30	1,30		13h59
Refuel (FIA & ACM fuels) - Gap		R.Z.4	(3,40)			
Distance to next refuel		(41,23)	(118,92)	(160,15)		
6	Aspremont		38,76	38,76	0h45	14h44
SS 6	Aspremont - La Bâtie-des-Fonts 2	19,61				14h47
7	Chalancon		35,40	55,01	1h15	16h02
SS 7	Chalancon - Gumiane 2 (Live TV)	21,62				16h08
Refuel (FIA & ACM fuels) - Saint-Auban-sur-l'Ouvèze		R.Z.5	(48,16)			
Distance to next refuel		(22,24)	(98,44)	(120,68)		
8	Montauban-sur-l'Ouvèze		59,07	80,69	1h30	17h38
SS 8	Montauban-sur-l'Ouvèze - Villebois-les-Pins 2	22,24				17h41
8A	Gap - Technical Zone IN		61,94	84,18	1h35	19h16
8B	Gap - Technical Zone OUT - Flexi-Service IN		0,15	0,15	0h10	19h26
Flexi-Service D (Gap)			63,47	196,62	260,09	0h45+3
8C	Gap - Flexi-Service OUT - Parc Fermé IN		1,30	1,30		20h14
Early check-in allowed						
All cars (except restarting crews) must be returned to Parc Fermé no later than						22h45
DAY 2 : TOTALS		126,94	394,54	521,48		
Sunrise : 08h04 (Gap) - 07h57 (Monaco)		Sunset : 17h30 (Gap) - 17h27 (Monaco)				
VERSION 2 - 18.12.2020						

Bulletin 1, Attachment 1

SATURDAY 23 JANUARY 2021						
TC	LOCATION	SS km	Liaison km	Total km	Target time	First car due
8D	Gap - Parc Fermé OUT - Service IN		0,00	0,00		08h06
	Service E (Gap)		0,00	0,00	0h15+3	
8E	Gap - Service OUT		1,30	1,30		08h24
	Refuel (FIA & ACM fuels) - Rousset	RZ6	(22,84)			
	Distance to next refuel	(18,31)	(35,01)	(53,32)		
9	La Bréole		30,79	30,79	0h50	09h14
SS 9	La Bréole - Selonnet	18,31				09h17
	Refuel (FIA & ACM fuels) - Rousset	RZ7	(27,06)			
	Distance to next refuel	(20,48)	(155,85)	(176,33)		
10	Saint-Clément		78,20	96,51	1h45	11h02
SS 10	Saint-Clément - Freissinières (Live TV)	20,48				11h08
10A	Gap - Technical Zone and Regroup IN		80,42	100,90	1h50	12h58
10B	Gap - Technical Zone and Regroup OUT - Service IN		0,15	0,15	0h30	13h28
	Service F (Gap)	38,79	189,56	228,35	0h45+3	
10C	Gap - Service OUT		1,30	1,30		14h16
	Refuel (FIA & ACM fuels) - Rousset	RZ8	(22,84)			
	Distance to next refuel	(18,31)	(138,95)	(157,26)		
11	La Bréole		30,79	30,79	0h49	15h05
SS 11	La Bréole - Selonnet	18,31				15h08
	Refuel (FIA & ACM fuels) - Puget-Théniers	RZ9	(131,00)			
	Distance to next refuel	(0,00)	(159,59)	(159,59)		
11A	Monaco - Parc Fermé IN Early check-in allowed		211,37	229,68	4h00	19h08
DAY 3 : TOTALS		57,10	433,02	490,12		
Sunrise : 08h04 (Gap) - 07h56 (Monaco)		Sunset : 17h31 (Gap) - 17h28 (Monaco)				

VERSION 2 - 18.12.2020

Bulletin 1, Attachment 1

SUNDAY 24 JANUARY 2021						
TC	LOCATION	SS km	Liaison km	Total km	Target time	First car due
11B	Monaco - Parc Fermé OUT - Tyre Fitting Zone IN		0,00	0,00		06h42
Tyre Fitting Zone (Monaco)						
11C	Monaco - Tyre Fitting Zone OUT		0,13	0,13	0h15	06h57
	Refuel (FIA & ACM fuels) - Puget-Théniers	RZ10	(79,14)			
	Distance to next refuel	(27,24)	(29,65)	(56,89)		
12	Puget-Théniers		80,12	80,12	1h30	08h27
SS 12	Puget-Théniers - La Penne 1	12,93				08h30
12A	Briançonnet - Regroup IN		18,96	31,89	0h45	09h15
12B	Briançonnet - Regroup OUT		0,10	0,10	0h45	10h00
13	Briançonnet		2,02	2,02	0h05	10h05
SS 13	Briançonnet - Entrevaux 1 (Live TV)	14,31				10h08
	Refuel (FIA & ACM fuels) - Puget-Théniers	RZ11	(7,14)			
	Distance to the end of the rally	(27,24)	(109,20)	(136,44)		
14	Puget-Théniers		8,57	22,88	0h34	10h42
SS 14	Puget-Théniers - La Penne 2	12,93				10h45
14A	Briançonnet - Regroup IN		18,96	31,89	0h40	11h25
14B	Briançonnet - Regroup OUT		0,10	0,10	0h45	12h10
15	Briançonnet		2,02	2,02	0h05	12h15
SS 15	Briançonnet - Entrevaux 2 Stage - Live TV)	(Power 14,31				12h18
15A	Monaco - Technical Zone IN Early check-in allowed		87,07	101,38	1h50	14h08
15B	Monaco - Technical Zone OUT - Parc Fermé IN Early check-in allowed		0,10	0,10	0h10	14h18
DAY 4 : TOTALS			54,48	218,15	272,63	
Sunrise : 07h55 (Monaco)			Sunset : 17h29 (Monaco)			

SECTION 6

SECTION 7

SECTION 8

VERSION 2 - 18.12.2020

RALLY TOTALS					
		SS	Liaison	Total	% SS
Thursday 21 January	Section 1	41,36	90,26	131,62	31,42 %
Friday 22 January	Sections 2,3	126,94	394,54	521,48	24,34 %
Saturday 23 January	Sections 4,5	57,10	433,02	490,12	11,65 %
Sunday 24 January	Sections 6,7,8	54,48	218,15	272,63	19,98 %
Totals		279,88	1 135,97	1 415,85	19,77 %